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ilorpavanathan, Chairman, NKFL, welcomes Shri Pravesh Sharma, 1AS (Retd.)

whao joined the Board as Independent Director

19" AGM of NKFL held on 22 September 2016
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Shri. R. Amalorpavanathan
Chatrman, MEFL
Dy. Managing Director, MABARD

Shiri. Syed Nagoor Al Finnsh Dr. M, Ghole

shri. K. Manimaran

CGM, NABARD, Tamil Nadu RO CGM, NABARD GM, Indian Bank
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Regd. Office :Ground Fioor, NABARD THRO Building
No.48, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600 034,

NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the 20" Annual General Mecting of the shareholders of the company will
be held at 04.00 p.m. on Monday the 25" day of Septemnber 2017 at the Conference Hall of NABARD,
Tamil Nadu Regional Office (2™ Floor), No. 48, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai
600 034 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

To consider passing, with or without modification, the following Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company including the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement for the year
ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon be and are
hereby adopted.™

To consider and if thought fit 1o pass, with or without modification. the following Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the dividend for the year ended 31" March 2017 at the rate of Rs.0.50
per Equity Share (5% on the face value of Re.10/- per share) on the amount paid up on the
cquity capital of the company, in proportion to the period of holding, as recommended by the
Board of Directors be and is hereby declared.

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 (3)and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s. V.Senthilnathand Co., Chartered Accountants
as Statutory Auditors of the company for the year 2017-2018 as proposed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (CAG), New Delhi be and is hereby approved, on such
remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company and further resolved
that the aforesaid Auditors appointed by the CAG under Section 139 (3} of the Companies Act,
2013 shall hold office from the conclusion of this meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual
General Mecting of the Company™.

To re-appoint Shri.E. Manimaran, Director, who retires by retation and if thought fit to pass,
with or without medification, the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 (6) and other applicable provisions if any of the
Companies Act, 2013, Shri. B. Manimaran, Director who retires by rotation be and is hereby
re-appointed as Director of the company™.

For and on behalf of the Board
For NABKISAN Finance Limited
Place : Mumbai Sd/- -
Date -30,08.2017 5. Dwivedi

Chief Executive Officer _‘/

MABKISAN Finance Limited \N
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The members are requested to inform change of address, if any, 1o the company.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the
Company. The instrument appointing proxy should however be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Corporate Members are requested to send a duly verified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders desirous of seeking any clarification on the business to be transacted at the 20"
Annual General Meeting are requested to forward their queries to the Registered Office of the
company, at least 10 days before the date of the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from
19.00.2017 to 25.09.2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting and
dividend for Financial Year 2016-17.

If dividend on Ordinary Shares as recommended by the Board of Directors is approved at the
meeting, payment of such dividends will be made to those members whose names are on the
Company’s Register of Members as on 18.09.2017 (date before closure from date). Sharcholders
are requested to provide Bank details to facilitate payment of dividend, etc., either in electronic
mode or for printing on the payment instruments.

Members are requested to bring their copies of Anmual Report for the meeting.

Members / Proxies are requested to bring the Attendance Slip sent with the Annual Report duly
filled in for attending the meeting.

NABKISANM Finance Limited «.\TI
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For and on behalf of the Board
For NABEISAN Finance Limited
e s o
Drate :30.08.2017 Chief e
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Regd, Office :Ground Floor, MABARD TMRO Building
Mo.48, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennal 600 0534,

DIRECTORS' REFORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

It is the privilege for the Directors to present the 20" Annual Report on the business and operations of
the company together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017. It gives us
immense pleasure to inform that the company has registered improved business performance during
the year and has surpassed the targets set for the year under review

Financial Results

Our Company's performance during the financial year 2016-17 15 summarized below:

(Rs. Lakh)

Particulars 2015-16 2016-17 Growth %
Gross Income 1461.70 234935 .73
Expenditure Including Depreciation
% Extra Ordi Yoot 599 .69 1168.20 o4 K
Profit before tax Be2.01 1i81.14 37.02
Provision for tax (current year) 265 88 40924 33.92
Profit after tax
(before exceptional items) 596.13 77120 2040
Reversal of earlier tax provision / =
Earlier Tax .41 (1.64)
Profit after tax 595.71 77354 29 85

Beserves

The company has transferred R=.154.71 lakh to special reserve u/s 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 as against
Es.119.14 lakh transferred during the previous financial vear. The company has made a profit after tax
of R5.773.54 lakhduring the financial year ended 31" March 2017,

Dividend

The Board recormmended a maiden dividend of Rs.0.50 per Equity Share (5% on the face value of
Rs.10/- per share) on 5,77,24,350 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each for the year ended 31" March 2017, in
proportion to the period of holding. The dividend on Equity Shares is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). The total dividend pay-out works out to 43% of
the net profit. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 19.09.2017
1o 25.09.2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of the dividend for the financial vear
ended 31 March, 2017,

.
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Operations and Business Performance

The highlights of operational and business performance for the year are as under:

The net profit before tax for the year ended 31.03.2017 was Rs.1181.14 lakh, as against
Rs.862.01 lakh for the year 2015-16, showing a growth of 37%.

The net profit after tax, without exceptional items, has increased to Rs.773.54 lakh for
2016-17 from Rs.595.71 lakh during 2015-16, registering a healthy growth of 30%.

The gross NPAs have gone up to 1.24% (1.13%) due to continued stress in PLF accounts which
were rescheduled earlier and other accounts all of which are in Tamilnadu, where the ground
situation has not been conducive for timely repayment for various reasons.

The total aszets of the company have jumped from Rs 1459025 lakh as on 31.03.2016 to
Rs.32447.66 lakhason 31.03.2017.

Loan outstanding increased to Rs.30822.23 lakh (Rs. 11635.53 lakh during 201 3-16), registening
a robust growth of 165%.

The positon of borrowings as on 31.03.2017 stands at Rs.23793.53 lakh as against
Rs. 7260.761akh ason 31.03_2016.

Revenue from operations jumped from Rs. 1209.47 lakh as on 31.03.2016 to
Rs.2211.151akhason 31.03.2017, showing a rise of 83%.

The zanchons dunng the year 20016-17 have pone up o Rs 27864 60 lakh compared to
Rs.12137.31 lakh, registering a growth of 130%.

The dishursements during the year 2016-17 have pone up to Rs.26270.65 lakh compared to
Rs5.9276.27 lakh, registering a growth of 183%.

Futlure OQutlook

The Board of Directors of the company has approved the following business plan of the company for
the financial year 2017-18:

NS
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RESERVES & SURPL.LS NET WORTH
{F.s in lakh) (Rs. mm lakh)
' 4
TRIT 16
EARS &2
s 1271.18
283491
2014-15 11516 01617 2014-15 201516 2018-17
(Rs. Lakh)
51. No Activity Flan
E Activity based lending through 3000.00
MNGOs/Trust/ Sec 25 Companies '
. Agn corporates/ NBFCs/ 11000.00
State level Federations
3 Panchayat Level Federations (PLFs) 2000.00
4 Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs) T7500.00
5 Farmers' Producer Organisations (FPOs) S000_00
& PACS as MSC 1500.00
TOTAL J0d0nD, B0

The Company foresees significant scope for expansion of business in the sectors of agriculture,
microhnance, rural housing, sanitation,etc. during the year, besides lending to Farmer Producer
Orgamzations (FPOs). Thrust will continue to be provided for financing of FPOs s0 as to integrate the
small farmers with the agniculture market value chain and become sustainable business enterprises
over a penod of ume. The company will continuously explore the scope for leveraging technology ina
cost effective manner to reach out to the POs in mteriors and meet their credit needs. Risk
diversification measures will also have to be initiated to address the concentration and sectoral risks as
long term mitigation measures.

Status of NPA Accounts:

At present, the company has one NPA account viz,, M/s. Eerattil Poultry & Agro Farms Pvt, Lid,
against which 100% provision has been made. Necessary steps have been taken for recovery of dues
from the said accounts through legal process, viz., civil suit and eriminal complaint, keeping the door
open for negotiations.

During the year 2016-17, an amount of Rs.251.62 lakh({previous year -Rs.73.44 lakh) have slipped into
NPA category in the case of PLFs, for which provision of 10% as per guidelines of RBI has been made.
Regular follow up is being made with the State and District project unit of PVP and also with the PLFz
for improving the recovery.

N i




T PROFIT BEFORE TAX LOAN OUTSTANDING ]
(Rs. in lakh) {Es. in lakh)
082223
1181.14
B52.01
0H, 11635.53
G

H14-15 01516 201617 2014-15 2005-16 208-17

1.

Emphasis of matier in Auditors' Report and management replies

We draw attention to our MNotes to the financial statements uncertainties relating to the
outcome of the appeal filed relating to various cases, the impact of the same as on3 st March
2017 on the results cannot be determined pending ultimate outcome of the matter and no
provision has been recognized in the financial statements.

Reply: At present, the company has one NPA suit filed account viz., M/s. Eeratul Poultry &
Agro Farms Pvt. Ltd. against which 100% provision has been made. Necessary steps have been
taken for recovery of dues from the said accounts through legal process, viz., civil suit and
criminal complaint, keeping the door open for negotiations.

We draw attention to note no 1.1 and 1.2 relating to classification of NBFC as systemically
important company and not non systemically company, duc to which vanous returns and
disclosure requirements are applicable the financial impact is less but aftermath effect may
come from Reserve Bank India.

We draw attention to our notes No 1.2 (iii) to the financial statement pertaining to varous
disclosure parameters for NBFC to be made in the financials statements from the year ended
31.03.201 5 onwards which 15 tobe adhered.

We draw anention to our notes No 1.2 (i) to the financial statement pertaimng to
various returns applicable for NBFC for filing with RBI which is to be done by the company.

We draw attention to our notes no 1.2 (1) to financial staternent with respect to régistration
which needs to be done with CERSAI for creating, modifying, filing of charge created for
variouws assets pledpged with the company.

Reply 1o points 2 to 5: The company had already obtained an opimion from the Law
Department of NABARD, the parent organisation that the RBl Master Direction
DNBR. PDOOT/03.10.119 /201617 dated 01.09.2016 does not apply to the company for the
reason that NABKISAN and other NBFCs, in which NABARD has an equity are not floated by
common set of promoters and floated by different promoters and as such the subsidianes
should be viewed as stand-alone entities.

NABKISAN Finance Limited ﬁﬁ
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Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013
1) Extract of Annual Eetorn

The details forming part of the extract of the annual return is enclosed in Annexure 1.
1) Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

/BE;LR. Amalorpavanathan Deputy Managing Director, NABARD HO, Mumbai
Chairman cum Mominee Director
Dr.B.G.Mukhopadhyay Chief General Manager - NABARD HO, Mumbai
Mominee Dhrector
Shri. Syed Nagoor Ali Jinnah Chief General Manager, NABARD TWRO, Chennai
Nominee Director
hri. R Manimaran G, Indian Bank, Chennail
Mominee Dhrector
Shri.R.S.Manoharan Joint Secretary to Gowvt., Finance Dept., Chennai
Mominee Director
i.Ashis Mondal Director & Managing Trustee, ASA, Bhopal
Independent Director
.Sunil Haribhau Pote President, Yuva Mitra, Nashik
Independent Director
Shri.Pravesh Sharma Ex-1AS Officer, New Delhi
Independent Director
Shri. K. Suresh Kumar Chief Executive Officer, NKFL
Shri.5. 5. Vaseeharan Chief Financial Officer, NKFL

During the year, the following changes have taken place in the Board of Directors:

- Shn.E.5 Manoharan, Joint Secretary to Govi., Finance Department was appointed as
Mominee Director in place of Shn. M.Arand, LTAS, Deputy Secretary to Govit., Finance
Department weef, 13.10.2016,

Dr. R Anandakumar, [AS, Additonal Secretary to Government, Finance Department was
appointed as Nominee Director in place of Shn.R.5.Mancharan, Joint Secretary to Govt.,
Finance Department we.f. 27.07.2017.

Shri.Pravesh Sharma was appointed as Independent Director of the Company for a term of
three years wee.f. 22.09. 2016, with the approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting.
He has resigned from his position wee £ 07.08.201 7.

Dr.PM.Ghole, CGM, NABARD was appointed as MNominee Director in place of
Dr.B.G.Mukhopadhyay, CGM, NABARD we f. 23.06.2017.

Shri, 5. Dwivedi, General Manager, NABARD was appointed as Chief Executive Officer in
place of Shri.K.Suresh Kumarw.e.f. 12.06.2017.

= DrK_S.Mahesh, DGM, NABARD was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in place of

K\\\ Shri.5.8. Vasecharan w.ef, 30.05.2017. _xfj/
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ii) Numberof Board Meetings
The Board of directors met six times during the year 2016-17 on 03" May 2016, 27" June 2018,
19° August 2016, 26* September 2016, 24" November 201 6and 03" February 2017,
iv)  Audit Commities
In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had constituted an Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee met two times during the year 2016-17 on 03" May 2016 and
24" November 2016, [
The present committee consists of Shri.Syed Nagoor Ali Jinnah (Chairman), Shri.Sunil Pote,
Independent Director and Shri.Ashis Mondal, Independent Director.
() Related Parry Transaction i

All the related party transactions are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act.
The details of the transaction with related party are provided in the financial statements.

Declaration by Independent Dhireciors

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each ID in accordance with Section
149(T) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in
sub-section (6)of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Directors'
Responsibility) Rules 2000, the Directors state that:

The applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the annual
accounts along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.

Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the judgements and
cstimates made are reasonable and prudent soas to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company at the end of the financial yearand of the profit and loss of the company for that
period.

Proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Statutory Auditors

M/s. V.Senthilnathan & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai were appointed by the CAG of India,
New Delhi as Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2016-17. Further the Supplementary Audit of
the company's accounts was entrusted to the Principal Director of Commercial Audit& Ex-Officio
Member Audit Board - [V under Section 143 (5) & (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

_/
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Secretarial Auditors

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration)
Rules, 2014 inter-alia requires every Public Company having a paid-up share capital of fifty crore
rupees or more to annex with its Board's report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company
Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form.

The Board of Durectors appointed Smt.PR.Sudha, Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial

Auditor to conduct Secretanial Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2016-17 and her report is
annexed to this Board report vide Annexure I1.

The Secretanal Auditor has also made emphasis of matter on the ssues mentioned by the Statutory
Auditorin her Report and the management replies are the same as furnished above,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The annual report on our CSR activities is appended at the end of the Board's report.

Information on Energy, Technology and Foreign Exchange as per Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013

Our company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption. The
Company has no foreign exchange earnings or outgo.

Employee Benefits

The company has voluntarily contributed 5.33% on Basic Pay (o staff towards Public Provident Fund
and providing Graruity at half a month salary for each year of completed service, after completion of
five years' service, though the provisions of Employee Provident Fund Act and the payment of
Grratuity Act are not applicable to the employees of the company. The Gratuity of Deputation Staff of
MNABARD s being reimbursed to NABARD.

Status of the Company

The company was declared as a Deemed Government Company vide Letter No.CAV/30-2006 dated
28" Aupgust 2006 from the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi (CAG) who will
appoint the Statutory Auditors every yearunder Section 139 (5) of the Companics Act, 2013,

Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support provided to the company by
MABARD, the shareholder banks, the Government of Tamil Madu, the client institutions and the
other shareholders of the company

For and on behall of the Board
For MABKISAN Finance Limited

Place : Mumbai Sd/-

_ . Drwavedi
Date :30.08,2017 Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
Programs:

With the applicability of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board as its meeting held on the
27" June 2016, had constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (C5R) to formulate,
envisage and oversee the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII and
to monitor the policy from time to time.

The CSR Committee met on 19" Auggust 2016 to consider and recommended to the Board the CSR
policy for their approval. The recommended CSR policy was approved by the Board at its meeting held
on the same day.

The CSR policy of the company can be viewed from its website: www.nabkisan.org.
2.  Composition of the CSR Committee:
The present constitution of the CSR Commirtee is as follows:
- Shri SNA Jinnah, Director
- Shri AshisMondal, Independent Director and
- Shri Sunil Pote, Independent Director
3.  Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Financial Year N"}Lﬁﬂ?’
201314 2,50,89,983/
2014-15 409,00 367/
H15-16 B.62,00.087-
Total Profis for 3 years 15,201,992 4374
Average of the Above profits 5,07,30,812/-

5.  Prescribed CSR expenditure (rwo percent of the amount as in Item 3 above):
2% of average profit-Rs.10,14,616/-
6.  Details of C5R spent during the financial year:

(a) ‘Total amount to be spent for the financial year - Rs.10,14,616/-. Total amount spent for the
financial year - NIL

() Amountunspent,if any: Rs.10,14,616/-
(¢} Mannerinwhich the amount is spent during the financial year : Not Applicable

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not

& spending the amount in its Board Report: __,:f‘/‘

10
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The CEO had detailed discussions with a number of NGO's partners to actively support and
channelize the activities / projects /programs to be undertaken by NABEISAN in line with its CSR
objectives but could not identify any suitable NGO partner for the purpose. Further, due to paucity of
time, the CSR amount could not be spent during the current year.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring
of the CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company:

Mot applicable
Shri.S.MNagoor Ali Jinnah Shri.5unil Pote Shri. Ashis Mondal
Director Independent Director Independent Director




MABKISAN Finance Limited

AMNEXURE - 1

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

activities as also Rural Off-farm activities

i | CIN U65191 TN 1997PLC037525
1 Registration Date 14-02-1997
iii | Name of the Company MNABKISAN FINANCE LIMITED
iv | Category/Sub-category of the Company PUBLIC COMPANY
. GROUND FLOOR, NABARD TNRO BUILDING,
y | #ddressof the Registered office NOME, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD,
& contact details NUNGCAMBAKEAM, CHENNAIL - 600 034
vi | Whether listed company NO
vii | Name , Address & contact details of the —
Registrar &Transfer Agent, if any.
[[. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated
SL.No Mame & Description of NIC Code of the B 1o tofal turmover
main products /services Product /service of the company
1 Lending to agriculture and allied 801 100

M. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SL.No| Name & Address of the Company CIN/ | HOLDING/ | % OF APPLICABLE
GLN | SUBSIDIARY /| SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD N
1 NATIONAL BANK FOR
AGRICULTURE AND RURAL NA | HOLDING | 80.84 2 (87)
DEVELOPMENT

12
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IV  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

—

Categorywise sharcholding

MABKISAN Finance Limited

{‘1\,~

of the year

[Category of Sharchelders | Mo of Shares keld at the beginning

Mo o Shares held zt ibe emd of the year
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", change during ihe

Dicmar

Fysical | Tetal

5% o Tocal
Shares

Diewmai

Firsical

Tt al

% ol Toval
Shares

A Fromotere

(1} Iedian £

a) Indnadual HUF -

b} Central Crova. or 5
Stare Govt.

£) Bodirs Corporaics ¥
d} Bank/Fl 31710000

15556700 | Seetoints 1

15556700

AR A5 T

pther =

[
SUB TOTAL : [A) 1y 111 WD

15556700 | destetee 10

1 SE5600

dEeas T
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&) NRI- Individual -

cj Badies Coep. .

) Bank/Fl :

T o

S5UR = [Ad .

Toqal Sharehaldisg of
Promaster
(A=lAN AN

31110000 15556700 | 46666700

ERRRELLL Y

15556700

[ B FUBLIC SHARENOLDENG

{1} Inesiutions

2) Miumal Funds -

b) Bani/F] 3004400

1037

2450000

c} Central Giavt

d) State Gavt

g‘l’mnmﬂa.piulﬁt_nd

NEKHHD | | BOKHMM)

133

ARRMOGD | 744400

11014404 | 1308

15700

L T00 15700

capital in upeo of Rs.1 lakhs

LTS5 21550

05

IT550

21550

i

it} Indfividuals sharcholders
holding nomimad share:
capital in cagei of

.l lakhi

Ouhier i .
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.08

‘Tetal Publlc Sharcholding
(B =B BN

4433180 | TSTERD

13.78

ToETese| 1916

. Shases beld by Cusindian
fior GRS & AINE:

Cirand Tetal (A+B+C) M4

ISFTHSD | S4124350|  TDdF

3144400

STT2AN50| 10D

\
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SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

MABKISAN Finance Limited

<y

Sl No.| Sharcholdes Hame Sharckolders ar the Sharcholders at the % change n
bepainning of the year end of the year Shareholders
during the year
MO af & of % of dhares NO ol o off 2L o ilpasey
sntal shares pledped sl ghares|pledped
Shares  |orme  lemcumbered| SRS lofihe estusibored
coeapany  |io bolal coEnpany (o ol
shiares shaies
1 MATIONAL BANE FOR
AGRICULTURE
AMD BLURAL
DEVELOPMENT 66 66,700  B62X 4 50,06, T8 50,54 . u
(I} CHANGE N PREOMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS5 NO CHANGE]
Sl Mo Share holding at the Cumulative Shase holding
beginming of the Year duaring the year
Top 10 Shareholders MNouof sharen | % of total sharrs Mo of shares T 0o B sl
of 1hc cosmpany shases of the
Gl plsy
1 Abthe hepanng of the year 4 Bl 66, 700 BA 22 4,60 3, NI HIk 84
2 Dhase wier indreaie/ decrense i
Promolers Share bolding during
the year specafying the moason fos
encvease) decreaer (o alladmsennd
eraceler/bomus S sweal equiry eich
Proferenizal Allatencm
made im 12,00 2006
3 A the ond of the year 4,56 B4, TN R4

(v}

Sharcholdiog Patiern of top ten Shareloiders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDEs & ADRs)

51, Mo Share halding at 1he Shasehnlding at the end of the year
beginming of the Year
Top 10 Skarchalders Mo.of shares |% of ioial shares Mo of shares % af total
of the compasy phares @l the
company
i MATIOMNAL BANE FOR
AGRICULTURE AND
RURAL DEVELOPMENT 4,66,66, T By 22 4,665, 65, TN BOB4
F] GOVT. OF TAMILNADU 15.00,000 3.3 __54,00,000 455
k] INDIAM BANE 3000000 554 30,0000 523
4 CANARA BANK 10,34, 400 1% 10,34.400 [
5 IMINAN OVERSEAS BANK 380,000 0.70 3,50, 000 {166
& LAKSHMI VILAS BANK 240,000 .46 250,000 .43
7 FEDERAL BANK LTI pE ] .41 3 50 000 .43
] ICICT BANE LTI " 300,008 .37 200,000 0.33 |
] TAMILHAT MERCANTILE BANE £ {00,000 042 500,000 037 |
10 POF EDUCATIONAL AHD
WELFARE SOCIETY 10000 0.02 10,300 002 “/)
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(v} Sharchelding of Directars & KMP MIL
¥ INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ acerued but not due for payment
f.".'ﬂtﬂl.l’td Loans Unsecured | Deposits | Total
excluding deposits | Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i) Principal Amount z 72,60,76,107 " 72.60,76,107
| 1) Interest due but not paid 5 . .
| iii) Interest accrued but not due B1,72,075 - 81,72.076
Total (i+ii+iil) - 73,42,48,183 - 73,42,48,183
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions 2,11,63,70,000 % 2.11,63,70,000
Reduction 46,30,92,775 . 46,30,92,773
Met Change - 1,65,32,77,225 - 1,65,32,77,225
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Pnncipal Amount 2,37,93,53,332 - 2.37,93,53.332
i) Interest due but not paid ; E !
i) Intercst a:curitd but not due 235,22 275| 23522275
Total (i+ii+iii) - 2,40,28,75,607] - 2,40,28,75,607

{vi) Bemumeration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: il

51 Mo

Paribeulars of Remuneration

Mame of the MD
SWTD/ Manager

Tatal
Amount

1. | Gross salary

{a) Salary as per provisions contained i sesion 17(1} of the Incame Tax, 1961,

(b} Value of perquisites w/s 17(2) of the Income tax A, 1961

{c ) Profits in liew of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Aa, 1961

2. |5tock option

3. |Swear Equity

4. |Commission

as % of profit

others (specily)

5. | Others, please specafy

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act
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Remuneration to other directors:

MABKISAN Finance Limited

Particulars of Remuncration

Mame af the
Drirectors

Taeal
Amount

Giross salary

Independent Directors

{a) Fee for attending board commetee mestings

Board Meeting

Shri_Ashis Mondal

4500

ShriSunil Pove

27,000

Shn. Pravesh Sharma

18,000

Commatiee Mesimg

Shn, Ashis Mondal

4,50

S Sunt Pore

9,000

5hn. Pravesh Sharma

Mil

(b} Commisszon

(e )} Ohers, please specily

[hrector Remueneration

Mrecior Remuneration

Total (1)

1,083,500

Cither Mon Exeostive [hrectons

{a} Pee for arvendimg,

() Commissign

(e} Others, please specily.

Total {2)

Towal (B={1+1)

1,03,500

Total Managerial Remuoneration

1,03,500

Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

SLHuo,

Pamsculars of Eermaneration

Key Manageral Personnel

Total

{rross Salary

CED

Company Secretary| CPD | Toml

{a] Salary as per prosssons contained in
section 17(1) of 1he Imcoame Tax A, 1961,

43,38, 625

6,41 605

(b} Value of perquisites ule 17(2)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(i ) Prafits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Saock Oiptson

Sweeal Equiry

Comaeisseg

as % ol profi

atbers, specily

Orhers, please spealy

Total

43,538,625

41,605

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
{(Under the companies Act) - None

L\ (vii)

. |
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ANNEXURE -1I
Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
| FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2017
. [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Compantes
| (Appointment and Remuneration of Managenial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To the Members of NABEISAN Finance Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by NABKISAN Finance Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/starutory compliances and expressing my opinion thercon.

Based on my verification of NABKISAN Finance Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, dunng the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by THE NABKISAN Finance Limited for the financial year ended on 31.03.2017
according to the provisionsof :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,
| (it} Secretarial standards (S5-1, 55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(i11) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and notifications issued by RBI from time to time.

NABKISAN Finance Limited 15 a subsidiary of National Bank for Agriculture and Rural
| Development (NABARD) (holding 80.34 % of the shares of NABKISAN Finance Limited as on
31.03.2017) and hence is a Government Company.

I NABKISAN Finance Limited has been granted certificate of registration No.B-07.00712 dated
| 25% September 2014 under Section 45 LA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the
business of non-banking financial institetion without accepting public deposits.

| During the period under review and as per the explanations and clanfications given to me and
the representation made by the Management, the company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except instances which would
not materially affect the operations of the Company.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

N Y
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance. In the instances where notice is given for less
than seven days, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules prescnbed therein have been
complied with, A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the Management, were unanimous and
therefore there were no dissenting views that were required to be recorded.

I further report that as per the explanations given to me and the representanions made by the

Management and relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period

a)  Atthe Annual General Meeting held on 22.09. 16, the members have passed ordinary resolution
for re-appointing Mr. Pravesh Sharma as an Independent Director of the company for a period of 3
years from 22.09.2016. Even though the resolution had been mentioned as an ordinary resolution in

the notice to AGM, the same had been passed unanimously which constitutes 80.84% of the paid up
share capital of the company (which satisfies the requirement of special resolution).

b  In the Independent Auditors report of NABKISAN Finance Limited dated 28.04.2017,
Emphasis of matter has been made on the following issues:

i non-recognition of provision relating to appeal filed in vanious cases,

ii. classification of NBFC as systematically important company due to which varous returns and
disclosure o EBI are required

ifi. disclosure parameters for NBFC to be made in the financial statements

iv.  remstration which needs to be done with CERSAI for creating, modifying, filing of charge
created for various assets pledged with the company.

All the above have been addressed by the Directors in their report.
I further report that

1.  Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriaté to obtain reasonable
agsurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretanial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. [ believe that the processes and
practices, [ followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company and have relied on the report of statutory anditors and financial statements.

4,  Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of

\\;a_m. rulesand regulations and happening of events etc. _’//,
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procedures on test basis.

professionals.

Place : Chennai
Date - 3082017

MABKISAM Finance Limited

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 1o the venfication of

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7.  The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirect taxes

and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this audit since
the same have been subject 1o review by statutory financial audit, CAG and other designated

Sds-
PR. SUDHA
FCS MNo.6ldb
CP Mo 4468

{‘\‘

N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Tothe Members of NABEISAN Finance Limited
Report on the Standilone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone finzgncial statements of NABKISAN Fipance Limited,
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. |
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone
financial staterments that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting récords in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effiectively for ensuning the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view .
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our awdit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under.

We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards required that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit 10 obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, a5 well as evaluating the overall presentat

\gfthuﬁnancial statemnents. ED/_,.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and its profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to our Motes to the financial statements uncertainties relating to the outcome
of the appeal filed relating 1o various cases, the impact of the same as on 31% march 2017 on the
results cannot be determined pending ultimate outcome of the matter and no provision has been
recognized i the inancial statements.

2. We draw attention to note no 1.1 and 1.2 relating to classification of NBFC as systemically
important company and not non systemically company, due to which various returns and
disclosure requirements are applicable the financial impact 15 less but aftermath effect may
come from Reserve Bank India.

3. We draw attention to our notes No.1.2 (1ii) to the financial statement pertaining to various
disclosure parameters for NBFC to be made in the financials statements from the year ended
31.03.201 5 onwards which is to be abhered.

4. We draw attention to our notes No 1.2 (iii) to the financial statement pertaining to varous
returns applicable for NEFC for filing with RBI which 15 to be done by the company.

5. We draw attention to our notes No 1.2 (i) to financial statement with respect to registration
which needs to be done with CERSALI for creating, modifying, filing of charge created for
various assets pledged with the company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order") read with
amendment made 1ssued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, we pive in the Annexure, a statement on the marers specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, with report that:

A We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audir;

b In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so faras it appears from our examination of those books;

N\ i
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting Standard Rules notified;

On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors 25 on 31 March
2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified ason
31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and operating effectiveniess of such controls, refer to our scparate report in
‘Annexure B'; and

With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule ! 1of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our opinion and to the best of
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of vanious pending litigations on its
financial position in the financial statements as referred to in Notes to the
financial statements;

ii, ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any matenial foreseeable losses; and

iii,  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has provided the requisite disclosures in the financial statements
as to holding as well as dealings in specified bank notes during the 05.11.2016 10
30.12.2016 and it is in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the
company.

For V. Senthilnathan & Co.,
Chartered Accouniants,
{Firm Reg. No. D037115)

5d /-
(V. Senthilnathan)

Date : 28.04.2017 Partner
Place : Chennai (M. No. 024244)

N\
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Annexure A to the Aoditors” Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, we report that;

() a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b) Asexplained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at regular
' intervals; as informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{1} (a) Inventoryisnotapplicable fothe company since it is non banking company.

, (iii) Inouropmon, no advances have been given to the parties listed in the register maintained under
' section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the clause is not applicable to the company.

{iv) Inouropimon and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loans to directors; hence the clause (iv) of the order is not applicable to the

company.

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
. rules made by the central povernment for the maintenance of cost Becords under Section 143(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Company's products to which the said rules are not
| applicable to the company.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
company examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income - tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth Tax,
service Tax, Customn Duty, Excise Duty and other matenial statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities in India;

T ——

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no does of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales
Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

¢) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under repont to
rransfcr any sums o the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of reporting
delay in transferring such sums does not anse.

r

(vitl) Inouropimonand according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, banks. Hence, the provisions of
clause (ix) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not germane.

NS %
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{x1)

(xii)
{x11i)
[xiv})

(xv)

(xvi)

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
aur audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid for managerial remuneration to directors of
the company, hence the clause (xi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
nota nidhi company, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transacrions with the related parties are in comphance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non- ¢ash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has obtained and registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 Vide No. IS B-07.00712

For V. Senthilnathan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants,
{(Firm Reg. Mo. 0037115)

Sd/-
(V. Senthilnathan)
Dare : 28.04.2017 Partner
Place : Chennai (M. No. 024244)

A

NABKISAN Finance Limited ﬂﬁ:
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- Annexure - “B" to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companics Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NABKISAN Finance
Limited as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone inancial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considenng the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safe guarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
aceounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 201 3.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Andit
of Intérnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICATI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakneéss exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

\ e
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Meaning af Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting 1% a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statemnents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of uwnauthonzed
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systern over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 march 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of inernal control state in the
guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the institute of
chartered accountants of india.

For V. Senthilnathan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Reg. No. 0037118}

Sd/-
'ﬁ'- Sﬂlﬂil.i.lmr.hﬁn:'
Date : 28.04.2017 Partner
Place : Chennai (M. No. 024244)

N
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Angéxure C to Independent Auditor’s Report

5. Mo, Directions

Remarks

1 | Are proper Records maintained for the land in possession
of the Company / Corporation giving full particulars of
quantitative details and locations?

Is the Company having clear title of the entire land 1n 1ts
possession and suitable documentary evidence available

with the management?

Not applicable

2 | Please report whether there any cases of waiver / write off
of debts / loans / interest etc., if yes, the reasons there for
and the amount involved.

Mil

3 Whether proper reconds are maintained for inventores
lying with third parties and assets recerved as gift from
govt. or other authorities.

Not applicable as
the company does
not have any
INVEentories

For V. Senthilnathan & Co,,
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Reg. No. (037115)

8d/-
(V. Senthilnathan)
Date : 03.06.2017 Partner
Place : Chennat (M. No. 024244)

L/
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUINTOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (8)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NABKISAN FINANCE LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017.

The preparation of financial statements of NABKISAN FINANCE LIMITED for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditor/ Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5)
of the Act is / are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report
dated 3" June 2017.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit under Section 143(6Wa) of the Act of the fimancal statements of NABEISAN FINANCE
LIMITED, for the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplemeniary audit has been carmed out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records. On the basts of my audit nothing sigmificant has come to my knowledge which
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report,

For and on the behalf of the Comptroller
and Aunditor General of India

Sds-
(D, Ashutosh Sharma)
Frincipal Drrecior of Commerical Audit &
Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board - [V

Date : 14.06.2017
|,\‘_ Place : Mew Delhi
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MABKISAN Finance Limited

Rugd. Ofica :Ground Floos, NABARD TNAD Building
Mo.48, Mahaima Gandii Road, Nungambakkam, Chenngl 800 6934

Balance Sheet as at Macch 31, 2017

Mote As at Az at
Farticulars rﬂ.l:f March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
T z
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1} Share Holders' Funds
Share Capital 31 57,72,43,500 54,1243 500
FBeserves & Surplus 32 20,44 72 298 12, 71,158,187
2} Non-current Liabilitics
Long-term borrowings .3 1,67, 85,26,662 44,90 43, 148
Long term provisions 34 .42 32,559 1,158,64.804
Dreferred tax Labibity (net) 35 3,953 (14}
1) Current Liabilities
Trade Payahle - 3.6 216,517 162415
(her current liabilities 3.7 72,44 83,528 28,5210 656
Shori-term provisions 38 4,55 87,131 4,43 72 968
I ASSETS Total 3,24,47,66,148 1,45,90,24 674
1}y Non-current Assets
Fixed Assels
- Tangible Assets A6 321,123 3,05,878
- Imtangible Assets ’ 883 888
Mon Current Investrognis 310 96,064,500 G, 5, 500
Long term loans and advances 311 1.79.00,73,777 54,61,73,073
Chther non cusrent asseis 1 ) 53768551 300,24 633
21 Cuarrent Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalenis 313 9,20,60.29% 24.54,15,447
Short term loans and advances 314 1,29 28 43 798 6l 76,56, 316
Other Current Assets 3.15 60,34,217 17,83,939
Total 3,24,47,66,148 1,45,90,24,674

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to accounts 1 to 4

The Schedules referred 1o above form integral part of Financial Statements

Vide report of even date For MABKISAN Finance Limited

Sds = Sdi- Sd/-
for ¥ Senthilnathan & Co R.Amalorpavanathan  Syed Magoor Al Jin 3. B.G Mukhopadhyay
Chartered ACCOEMENIS Chairman Dhrector . [hrector
Fom Reg Mo.005T115 Sl Sds- 5d/-
& Pravesh Sharma Sumil Hnihluu Pate Ashis Mondal
¥ Senthilnathan Independent Direcior  Independent Darecior Independent Director
Partner Sd/- - Sds-
M Mo 024244 K. Suresh Knmar S5 YVaseeharan 5. Bhevameswari
Mumbai, 2804 2017 Chief Execative Officer  Chief Fnameaal Officer Company Secretary
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MABKISAN Finance Limited

Schedule 1o the Balance Sheet

(s required in tenns of Paragraph 900 of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Prudential Morms (Reserve Bank) Directions, |99E)

Particulars

LIABILITIES SIDE

(1)

Loans and Advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures  Secured
Linsecured
{other than falling within the meaning of
public deposiis®)
(b) Defierred Credits
(¢} Term Loans
{d) Inter-Corporate loans and bormowing
(e} Commercial Paper
{f) Public Deposats *

{g} Other Loans (Un-secured loan - Refinance & Interim Finance
from NABARLD)

23793.53 =

)

Break-up of (1) () above {(Qutstanding public
deposits inclusive of

Interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a} In the form of Unsecured debentures

{b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e debenturcs
where there is a shortfal in the value of securnty

{c) Other public deposits

Assets sides

Amount ODutstanding

(3

Break up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables {other

than those included in {4) betow):
{a} Secured
(b} Unsecured

30822 23

R i

(4)

Breakup of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation
loans counting towards EL/HP activitics

(i} Lease Assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{a} Financial Lease
(b} Operating Lease
(i} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a) Assets on hire
(b} Repossesed Assels
{iii} Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(a} Loans where assets have been repossessed
(k) Loans other than {a) above

o —— — . R 5 . A —
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MABKISANM Finance Limited

Schedule wo the Balance Sheet
(as required in terms of Paragraph 9BE of Non-Banking Financial Companics
Prudential Norms (Feserve Bank) Directions, 1998)

Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs)

Assers shde: Amount Outstanding

(5}

Break-up of investments ;
Current investments ;
L. Ouoted ;
(i) Shares : {a) Equity -
(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(11} Units of mutual funds
{(iv) Government Securities
(v} Others (Please specify)

2, Unquoted:
{f) Shares ; (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Drebentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of mutual funds
(v} Government Secuntes
(v) Others (Please specify) - Fixed Deposit with Banks A0 81

Long Term Investmemnis:
L Quotesd ;
(1) Shares ; (2} Equiry
(b} Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i} Units of muwteal funds
(i) Ceveernment Securities
(v} Others (Please specify)

2, Ungquoted :

{1} Shares : (a) Equity

(b} Preference
(ii} Debentures and Bonds R
(i) Units of mutual funds
(1w} Government Securities
(v) Orhers (Flease specify)
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MNABKISAN Finance Limited

Schedule to the Balanee Sheet

{as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies

Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Borrower Giroup-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances:

c Amount net of provisions
ategory
Secured Ungecured Total
() | 1. Relaied Paries **
{a) Subsidiaries
(b} Companies in the same group 5
() Onher related paries
2. (ther than related parties J0728.59 - 30728.59
Total 30TR.59 - 30728.59

7

Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares
and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

Category

Market Valoe / Break
up or fair value or NAY

Book Yalue (Nek)
or Provisions)

I. Relared Parties **
{a} Subsidianes

(b)Y Companies in the same group
(¢} Other related parties

199.95

199,95

2. Other than related parties

Total

19995

199.95

Particulars

Amount

(8) | Other Information

(1) Related parties

(1) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(b} iher than related parties

ﬁ

38354

{a) Related parties

(i) Met Mon-Performing Assets

(b} Cther than related parties

280.90

{if) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Yede our repon of even date

for ¥ Senthilmathan & Co

Chartered Acooamtanis
Firm Reg Mo 03T115

54/

V Seathilnathan
Fartocr

Mo 242448
Mirmbaa, 28,04.2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

. Amalospavanathan
Chairman

547 -

Pravesh Sharma
Imdependent [hrector

SdS-
K. h Kumar

5ds-

Syed Magoor Ali Jinnah
Dizector

L

Suanil Haribhaus Fote
Independent Director

5d7-
5.5, ¥asecharan

Chief Executive Officer  Chibef Financzal Ciffioer

Sl/=
Dr. B.G. Muokhopadlsyay
Dharecoos

5d4/-
Ashis Mondal
Independent Direcior

S~
M. Bhuvaneswan
Company Secretary
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MNABKISAN Finance Limited

Ragd.Qlfca (Ground Floorn MABARLD THAD Buiding

Mo 48, Manatma Gandhbi Foed, Mungambakkam, Chennal 600 084,

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2017

%

Wit For the year ended | For the vear ended
Particulars Ref March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
T L1
1 INCOME
Revenue from Operations 4.1 21,11,15,158 12,09.47,356
O T ioini 42 |,3B,19,675 252 33 525
Total A 23,49 54 833 14,61,69 881
I EXPFENDITURE
Finance Cost 4.3 968 10,827 4 95 30,602
Employee Benefits Expenses 4.4 75,83.593 30,74,057
General & Administrative Expenses 4.5 4725174 32,3780
Frovisions & Contingencies 4.6 75.46,215 19,735,259
Depreciation 319 1,54,594 1,51,076
Toial B 11,6820 403 5,99,68,7%
I FProfit before exceptional and
extraordinary items and tax (1 -IT) i1,81,14,430 8,62,01,087
IV Extraordinary items %
¥ Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 11,81,14,430 B,62,001,087
¥l Tax Expenses
- Earlier Tax (1,63 436) 41,445
- Current Tax 4,0 20,000 2.66,00,000
- Deeferred Tax 3,967 (11.804)
VII Profit / (Loss) afier Tax 7,73,54,000 5,95,71,442
YIII Earning per Equity Share:
Basic & Diluted 214 1.39 2,22
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to accounts 1 (o 4
The Schedules referred to above form mtegral part of Financial Statements
Vide report of even date For NABKISAN Finance Limited
5d- Hds- Sds-
for V Senthilaathan & Co R.Amalorpavanathan  Syed Nagoor Ali Jinnak Dr, B.G.Mukhopadhyay
Chisriered Accountants Chairman Direciar Dripector
Firm Reg Mo Q037115 Sds - Sdi- Sdr-
Pravesh Sharma Sanil Haribhan Pote Ashis Moadal
"5:”' . [ndependent Director  Independent Director Independent Director
Partner S = Sl -
Mo 024244 B, Suresh Kumar 5.5 Vasecharan M. Bhuvaneswari
Blusmbad, 28.04. 3087 Chief Expcvnve Officer  Chiel Financial Officer Company Secretary

//
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1.1

1.2

Mopes o the fmancial statemens for the year ended Maech 31, 2017
(AN amounes in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 1:

El::-l:'l'll:l'.ul_-. vy ".'i-;."-‘u

Agri Development Finance (Tamilnadu) CADFT or ‘the Company’) was incorporated in India
on Feb 14, 1997 as a public limited non government company. The Company commenced its
operations on April 16, 1997. The name of the company was changed o 'NABKISAN Finance
Limited (NKFL)we.f. 18.09.2014, to expand its arca of operation on a Pan India basis,

The Major Shareholder holding a controlling Interest of 80.84% in the company being
NABARD which is an apex development bank and constituted in the form of statutory board by
the Government of India for coordinating, monitoring rural development banks ete. Hence, the
Nabkisan was accordingly registered as a Non government Company under the companies act
1956 since it did not satisfy the condition as per provisions of section 2(45) of the companies act
2013 relating to definition of Government Company. Accordingly all the provision of vanious
acts as applicable to a Non government company shall apply for the preparation and
presentation of financial statements.

As per Section 2{45) of the Companies act 2013, Government Company means any company in
which not less than fifty one per cent of the paid-up share capital is held by the Central
Government, or by any State Government or Governments, or partly by the Central
Government and partly by one or more State Governments, and includes a company which s a
subsidiary company of such a Government company,

As per the REI Direction 2016 dated 017 September 2016, if the advances size of the corporate
group along with the Associates of the company exceeds the prescribed limit will be classified as
a Systemically Important Non Banking Company. Hence, the Company is a MNon-Banking
Systemically Important Finance Company and not accepting public deposit and engaged in the
business of providing financial assistance to producer organizations, agriculture & alhed
activities to companies and also through PLFs/Trusts/Societies, etc.

The Management explains that the application of the RBI circular and directions 2016 dated
01.09.2016 did not apply to them for the reason thar NABKISAN and other NBFCs in which
NABARD has an equity, are not floated by common set of promoters and floated by different
promoters, the subsidiaries should be seen as astand-alone entity.

Operational Outlook

The Company being a holder of the CoR granted by RBI u/s 45-1A of the REI Act, 1934 is
bound to and has complied with circular DNBS (PD) C.C. No.79/03.05.002/2006-07 dated
Sept 21, 2006 regarding percentage of financial income to total income and financial asset to
total asset at more than 50%. The Company's financial income is 94.12% of the gross income
and it's financial aszet (loan asset) is 94.99% of the total assets.

As the company is a MBFC -systemically important company, the following various Provisions
as applicable to them needs 1o be complied with by the company:

MABKISAN Finance Limited = —-?\R
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' (72 NABKISAN Finance Limitod ﬂ%

Motes (o the [inancial siatemenis for the year coded March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

i) Registration Under CERSAL

As per the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest (Central Remistry) Amendment Rules, 2016, for every transaction of secunty created by
the company either in the form of movable or immovable or intangible assets shall needs to be
registered in the prescribed format with the CERSAI being central registry of Securitisation and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest of india for the
purpose of creating security interest in favour of the company for the advances given with
hypothecation of assets within preseribed ume. The company is yet to register the securities
pledged in favour with the CERSAL

iiy The company yet to form a nomination committes and risk management committees for
corporate governance as per the RBI directions 2016 dated 01.09.2016,

i) As the company is a Syetmically Important non deposit accepting NBFC, the company has to
adhere to disclose various information of parameters in the notes to financial statement of the
year ended 31.03.2015 onwards and also needs to file various returns that are applicable to
systemically important companies as per RBI direction 2016 dated 01.09.2016 like NDSI 500 cr
quarterly statements, NBS 7, NBS -ALM 1, 2, NBS ALM 3, branch information return and
SMA -2 Special mention account

Mote2: Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis for preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statemenis are prepared under the histornical cost convention, on the accrual basis
of accounting and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
{Indian GAAFP) to comply with the accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 20013 ("Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company follows the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
Drirections 2016 dated 01.09.2016 issued for Non-Banking Financial Companies (MBFC). The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those followed in the previous year.

All assets and labilities have been classified as carrent or non-current as per the company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set-out in Schedule 111 o the Companics Act, 2013,
Based on the nature of services and the time between the cash odtflow and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and habilines.

2.2 Useof Estimates:

The preparation of fAnancial statements in conformity with GAAFP requires the Company's
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statermnents and reported amounis of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such
estimates include future obligations under employee retiremnent benefit plans and useful
life of fixed assets and intangible asscts. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any

: \ revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively. —‘:{/.
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2.3
()

(ii}

(it}

(i)

2.4

P

Miotes (o the financial statements for the year ended Macch 31,2017

(Al amounis m Indian Rupees, unless athemwase stated)

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of acquisition jg
inclusive of installation and other incidental expenses directly anributable to the asset till it i5
put to use including dismantling costs arrived based estimated value in accordance with
Accounting Standard -10 Property, Plant & Equipment.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis with reference to the date of
addition and the Written down value Method in accordance with Schedule I1 to the Companies
Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirement under schedute 1l to the Companies Act 2013 the company
identified components (significant parts) of the main asset having different useful lives ag
compared to the main assets and determines cost of components significant to the total cost of
the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining life. However,
the management opines that the difference between the depreciation amount calculated on
component basis and that being charged presently in the accounts does not have any material
impact on the profit of the company and hence not recognized in the financial statements. .

Capital Work In progress: Projects under intangible fixed asseis are not yet ready for their
intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest. The Company 15 in the process of developing a software for the advances
and loans given for computing interest other areas etc which is still in progress and will be
implemented during the ensuring financial year which has been shown under Non Current
Assets in the financial statements.

[nvestments

The long term investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution in value, other than
temporary, is considered wherever necessary. The long term investment of the company is in
Bhavishya Nirman Bonds. The company has invested in Bhavishya Nirman Bonds issued by
NABARD (1137 bonds at face value Rs.20,000/- each) bought at discounted value of
Rs.96 64,500/ -, maturing berween July 2018 and October 201 8. The maturity value of the same
is Rs.2.27.40,000/- at 10 years. In the absence of information on quotation, the bonds are valued
at cost.

The interest earned but ot due during the year of above said bonds is recognized as income and
classified under other non-current assets. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and
market value / net asset value,

Revenue Recognition
Income nn Loan Transaction

Income on loan transactions is accounted on net outstanding amount and rate of interest that is
acerued during the financial year, except that no income is recognised on non—performing assets
as per the prudential norms for income recognition issued by the RBI directions 2016 for
NBFCs. Interest income on such assets is recognised on receipt basis. Income not recognized by

the accounts is Rs.2,60,997/- (Previous year Rs.3,75,701/-).

the company in respect of Non Performing Assets upto 31" March 2017 and not uumid:-red—'m/

MABKISAN Finance Limited —_'Z:"-\F-\\-
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2.6

2.7

Motes to the financial starements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounis in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Upfront / processing fees collected from the customer for processing loans are for appraisal,
disbursement, monitoring of the project till the end of the account. This is accounted as income

when the amount becomes due provided recovery thereof is certain.
Income from current and long term investment

Interest income on bonds and Deposits is accounted on accrual basis.
Employee Benefits

The company has voluntarily contributed 8.33% on Basic Pay to staff towards Public Provident
Fund and providing Gramity at half a month salary for each year of completed service, after
completion of five years service, though the provisions of Employee Provident Fund Act and the
payment of Gratuity Act are not applicable to the employees of the company. In case of Officers
on Deputation, the Gratuity 1s provided at the rate of one month's pay plus dearness allowance
as defined in NABARD (Payment of Gratuity to Employees) Rules, 1983 for each completed
year of service (placerfient) and proportionately for part thereof, Provision for Gratuity is
computed and provided in accordance with para 32 of Accounting standard - 15,

The leave balance 15 classified as Short-term. The Short-term Leave Encashment liability for the

expected leave to be encashed has been measured on actual components eligible for Leave
Encashment and expected Short-term leave to be availed 15 value based on the total cost to the

Company.
Re-financeloan from NABARD
The company has "Re-finance” arrangements in the form of advice received from NABARLY,

and the refinance is being availed by the company after disbursement of loan, the terms of each
refinance is repayable in three years with half yearly installments and interest,

The “Re-Anance” arrangements are unsecurad in narure and there was no default in repayment
of loan installments and also interest. The following are the repayment terms:

S1.Mo.| Rate of Interest | OQut-standing no. of installments| Amount (Rs.)
L 7.90% 40 41.26,00,000
2, 8.35% 40 30,16,70,001
3. B.a0% 40 43 58,33,332
n 3.00% 80 1,04,76,66,666
5. 8.25% 3 3,36,66,6606
6. 9. 10% 12 14,79,16,667
Total | 2,37,93,53,332

— NMABKISAN Finance Limited \\\
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2.9

,/r;r NABKISAN Finance Limited * —;'“\vi-\
Maodes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in lndian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The current maturities (payable within the period of 12 months) of “Re-finance" commitments,
are classified as Current Liabilitics amounting to Rs.70,08,26,670 and the remaining
commitments are classified under Long term borrowing amounting to Rs.1,67,85 26,662 (Maote
Ref 3.3 & 3.6).

Taxation

Tax expense compnises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount
expected 1o be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Incometax Act, 1961 enacted in
India and rax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the company operates. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences
between taxable income and accounting income onginating during the current year and reversal
of timing differences for the earlier years, Deferred tax is measured wsing the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax is the amount of tax
payable ontaxable income as per provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty
that sufficient furure taxable income will be available against which sech deferred tax assets can
be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized enly if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

The Provision made for Current Income Tax in the financial statements by the company are
made at best cstimate basis without considering the Impact of Income Computation &
Disclosure Standards notified under the Income Tax Act for the computation of profits and
gains of business or profession of the company due to which profits of the company are either
understated or overstated to the extent of impact in the financial statements. Bur the
management of the company claims that the taxation review will be done by their tax
consultants and accordingly proper norms for tax computation will be adhered to by the

company.
Impairment of Assets

Al each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews whether there is any indication of
impairment of assets. If any such condition exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is

estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flow expected from continuing use of the
asset and from its disposal is discounted to their present value using a pre—tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of tme value of money and the risk spﬁ‘iﬂc to the asset.

A
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' ;;F. NABKISAN Finance Limited \\

Motes w the hnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Al amounts in Indian Rupeées, unless otherwise stared)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than the carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recopnised immediately in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

After impairment, depreciation 15 provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its
remaining useful life. A previously recogmised impairment loss is increased or reversed
depending on changes in circumstances. However, the carrying value afier reversal is not
increased above the lower of recoverable amount and the carrying value that would have
prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment

2.10 Businesssegment

There are no separate reportable segments as per accounting standard AS 17- “Segment
Reporting” and consist mamly of “Financing Activity” The “Financing Activity” segment
consists of asset inancing, term loans, others ete.

2.1 Provisions and Contingencies

(1} Prowvigions for Standard / Non Performing Assets and Doubtful Debts- The Company provides
an allowance for loan receivables based on the prudential norms issued by the RBI direction
2016 for NBFC relating to income recognition, asset classification and provisioning for
non=-performing assets.

{ii) MNon-Performing Assets{NPAs) are identified and categorised according to the directions issued
by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The company has classified twenty four term loan accounts
as NPA and made a provision of Rs.28,11,776/- (Previous Year Rs.7,34, 480/-). Provisions are
made against doubtful assets at the rates prescribed in the RBI Guidelines.

() Provisions made as per RBI Guidelines are wrinen back as prescribed by the Guidelines.

(iv} Provisioming for NPAs is dependent upon, inter alia, whether the NPA 15 secured or unsecured.
The company's loans are considered as secured as the Company has valid recourse to assets /

recovery by:
a, equitable mortgage of property and/or
b hypothecation of assets and/or
. company guarantees supported by assets and /or
d. decrial debis where Courts have attached property.

(v)  Provision for Standard Assets is made at 0.25% of the outstanding standaid assets based on RBI
directions 2016 for NBFC dated 01.09.2016.

2.12 Cosh Flow Statements

(i)  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or furure
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of

the Company are segregated based on the available informarion.
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(ii}

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Related Party Transaction

MABKISAN Finance Limited

Mutes (o the Mnancial satcments far the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, unlese otherwise srated)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), I-n'g]:,_]!Ir
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) is the holding company
with 80.84% on the paid up equity capital of the company. The following payments have been
made /payable by the company to NABARD and its deputation staff during the financial year

2016-17.
Amount in Rs,
Particulars 2006-2017 2015-2016

Office Rent (including Property & Sewage Tax) [,25,626 1,25,646
Office Electricity Charges 36,440 35,500
Chief Executive Officer
Salary 26,440,227 21,03,175
Ciratuity 143,481 1,37,608
Reimbursement of expenses 1392851 11,91,051

Total |  43,38,625 35,92,980

Unsecured Loan

ycar is as follows:

Shri.5.5 Vasecharan, AGM, NABARD was posted on Deputation to NABKISAN Finance Ltd
as Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) with effect from 31.03.2015. The salary and other allowances

including reimbursement expenses of CFO are borne by the parent organisation, NABARD.

The company obtained refinance / interim finance from NABARD. The transaction during the

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2016-2017 2015-2016
Opening Balance 72.60.76.107 48 48,73,750
" Loan received during the year 2,11,63,70,000 53,91,00,000
Loan repaid during the year 46,30,92,775 29,78.97,643
[ Closing Balance it 2,37.9353.332 72,60,76,107
Interest paid/payable on above 9,68,10,827 4,94,78,177

P d=lal=s]
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NAEBKISAN Finance Limited

Motes ro the financial ssatements for the year ended March 31 . 2017
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.14 Earnings per Share

Basic/Diluted earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit/loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders (after deducting aitributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding as at the end of the vyear.  As there were no shares
considered as dilutive, same denominator as appkiu:abIF for Basic EPS has been used for
compurting the dilutive Earnings Per Share.

—;\\‘

2.16

Particulars 2016-2017 2015-2016
(A} Profit for the year after taxation (in Rupees) 7.73,54,009 5.95,71,442
(B) Number of equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- fin nurmnbers), 3,17,24,350 5,41,24 350
() Basic & Diluted earnings per share {A/H) (in Rs.) 1.39 - 222
2.15 The following is the Movement of NPA as on 31.03.2017:
Opening balance of NPA 135.38 L6446
Add: NPA Addition During the Year 290.12 a1.09
Less: NPA Collection during the Year 41.97 120.16
Closing balance of NPA 383.54 135.39

The Company during the Year has sanctioned advances in the form of loan ta the tune of Rs
27864.60 lakhs 1o various institutions, Farmer Producer Organisation and other corporate
etc. There were minor lapses in documentation of the advances given to borrower which were
noticed in few cases and have been communicated to the Company

2.17 Cash Transaction of BN Disclosure

o

 Particulars spy | Othes Dﬂ“ﬂ‘;‘i"“ﬁ““ Total

Closing Balance as at 08.11.2016 Nil 527 527

Add : Withdrawal from bank Mil 15,127 15,127

Add : Cash receipts for transaction Nil Nil Nil

Less : Paid for Permitted Transaction Mil 15,529 15,529

Less : Deposit In Bank. Nil Nil Nil

I\\_ Closing Balance As at 30.12.2016 Nil 125 125
l\\ 41
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.r/(;"" MNABKISAN Finance Limited i‘“‘?

Motes 1o the Gnancial statemenits for the yvear ended March 31, 2017
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, unless othenvise statéd)

2.18 The Company during the Financial Year 1s proposed to declare dividend at the rate of 5% of the
paid capital of the company as on 31.03.2017 to the shareholders in the Annual general meeting
of the company for which the details of dividend and dividend distribution tax are disclosed in
accordance with Accounting Standard -4 —Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet date:

Particulars Amount
Proposed Dividend @ 5% 2,78,36,422/-
Dividend Distribution Tax 56.66,840/-

2.19 The Management of the Company has devised a policy for Corporate Social Responsibility,
however the implementation of the Policy is yet to be initiated by the company fully as projects
are not yet identified as informed by the management of the company the following are the
disclosure for the financial year.

a Grossamount required to be spent by the company during the year Rs 10,15 1acs
b. Amount Spent during the year Rs Nil

2.20 The company during the financial year issued and allotted shares to Government of Tamilnadu
for Rs 3,60,00,000/- which comprises of 36,00,000 shares at Rs 10 per share at par value As per
the Management of the company, it claims that as the company is a non dividend paying
company till the financial year 2015-16, it was proposed to issue shares on  preferential
allotment shares at par of Rs 10 to the existing institutional shareholders and accordingly the
company did not compute and arrive at the valuation of the company from an registered valuer
for the purpose of issuing the shares and not complying with the provisions of rule 13 of
Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014.

2.21 As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the companies needs to evaluate the
independent directors on board of the company every year and disclose the same in the annual
report of the company, the company has revicwed the directors of the company but company is
yet to evaluate the independent directors of the company for the year.

As perour report of even date For NABKISAN Finance Limited
5d/- 5d/- 8d/f-
fior ¥ Senthilnathan & Co R.Amalorpavanathas  Syed Nagoor Ali Jinoah Dr. B.G.Mukhopadhyay
Chartered Accounmants Chairman Director Director
Firm Reg Mo.0037115 Sds- Sl - Sd/ -
Sd/ Pravesh 5hu:|_; Sunil Haribhau Pate Aczhis Mondal
v 2 Independent Director Independent Dhrector Independent Director
Fartner 54/ /= 2d/-
M. Mo 024244 K, Suresh 5.5.¥aseeharan M. Bhovanciwari
f |.\-_ Mumbat, 28 .04. 2017 Chief Executive Officer - Chief Financial Qfficer  Compary Secretary _’:)/
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NABKISAN Finance Limited

Accompanying notes to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

NOTE 3: Notes to the Balance Sheet
3.1 - SHARE CAPITAL
a. Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital

T March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Aunthorised Capital

10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,00,00,000 | 1,00,00,00,000

Issued Capital

i e 8 ] R

Subscribed and P‘iul up :

if?;j‘l‘uf’f“rﬂ“;:;;s p"ﬂ:;";’ ;:’;” 24,350 equity shares 57.72.43.500 | 54,12,43,500
57,72,43,500 |  54,12,43,500

. Shares held by holding / uitimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries
/ azsociates and details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Mame of Shareholder Mo of Equity 5 Mo of Equity a
Shares held Shares held
Shares Held By Holding Company
Mational Bank for Apgriculrare and | 4,66,66, 700 | 80.84% 4,66,66,700 B6.22%
Rural Development
Shares Held By Others
Gowve. of Tamuil Madu 54,00,000 | o358 18,00,000 3.33%
Indian Bank 3000000 | 5.20%: 30,00,000 5.54%
c. Reconciliation of oumber of shares
Equity Shares Equity Shares
Particluars
Mumber 4 MNumber 1
As at 31.3.2017 As at 31.3,2016
Shares oustanding a1 the 5.41,24,350| 54,12,43,500 1,99,79.950 | 19.97.99.500
beginning of the year
Shares [ssued during the year 36,00,000) 36000000 34144400 | 34,014,44,000
Shares bought back dunmg the year e
ﬁ{f;fm““m”ﬂ‘“ theendof | 7724350 57,72,43.500) 5.41,24.350 | 54,12,43,500

‘;:;\
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NABKISAN Finance Limited

Accompanying notes 1o the financial statements [or the year ended March 31, 2017

HOTE 3; Motes to the Balance Sheet

d. Information on equity shares alloted without receipt of cash or alloted as bonus shares
or shares bought back during the preceding five financial years - NIL

e. Terms & Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity share having 2 par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per share. The Company has proposed a dividend @5%on the
equiry share during the year, in proportion to the penod of holding,
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled 1o
feceive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts,
The distribution will be in proporation to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders.

3.2 - RESERVES & SURPLUS

Particulars h[arl:h%l,ﬂl'l? M«'Il‘-:‘hgl,lﬂl{i

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Oypening Balance 9,36,50,756 6.21,38.261

Transfer from Profie & Loss Account 1,73,54,099 5.95.71.442

Amount available for appropriation 17,10,04,855 12,17,09,703

Less : Transfer 10 Reserve Fund 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 1,54, 70 820 1,19.14 288

Less : Proposed Dividend @5% to the extent paid up - 1.34,13,504

Less : Dhvidend Distmibution Tax : 27,350,756

Balance as af the end of the year (A) 15,55,34,035 3,.36,50,755

Special Reserve

Opening Balance 3,34,67,443 2,15,53,155

Add: Transferred from Surplus to create Reserve [,54, 70,820 1.19,14 288

Fund uss 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934

Balance as at the énd of the year (B) 4,89,38,263 3,4,67,443
TOTAL (C) =(A) + (B) | 20,44,72,298 | 12,71,18,197

3.3 - LONG TERM BORROWING

Particulass Mar-:h.;l,lfll? Mmhgl,lmﬁ

Secured

LInsecurcd

- Loan from NABARD 1,67,85,25 662 44,90,43,148

Total| 1,67,85,26,662 44,90,43, 148

3.4 - LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

March g].ﬂll?

Particolare March %IJ.EI]I.E
Provision for employee benefits:
Ciratuty 14,443,837 12,249,695
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets (Refer Noae i) 31,63,397 13,50, 838
Provision for Non-Performing Assets (Refer Mote iii) 03,64, 328 65,52 552
Interest De-Recog.on Term Loan 2,060,597 3,75,701
Imterest Hebate on Term Loan - 251,688
Subsidy Reserwe Fund 21,04, 280
Total|  1,a2,32,559 1,18,64,804
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NABKISAM Finance Limited

Accompanying notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

HOTE 3: Motes o the Balance Sheet

Motes:

i) Dhiming the year, the cosupany has made a general provision at the rate of 0.25% on the standasd assets based on
RB1 Motificatien daced 22 02,2007 (updated as on 30.06.2014) applicable to NEFCs.

ii) Subsidy Reserve Fund 2016-17

COipening Balance 21 04, 280
Add Subsidy duning the year -
Less : Subsidy Adpested 21,04 280
Cloting Balance -

iid) In accordance with the Guidelines issued by the REI, the company has made a provision for Non Performing
Assers (NPA) and diminmenion invalue of irrestments, The details of movernent lnprmimmnfnljm:

MMovement in Provision for Non-Performing Assets

Particulars h‘[u:ch%l,lﬂli‘ March %I,Eﬂ]ﬁ
Opening Balance 65,523,552 1,64,45 689
Add : Provision made duning the year 2B.11,776 7.34. 480
Add : Provision utilised from Contingences = :
Less : Provision reversed during the year - 1,06,27 617
Closing Balance 9364328 #5.52,552
3.5 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
Piirtborlis Mmh%l,lﬂl? li'[an‘.‘hgi,ll]lﬁ
Deferred tax Aszset f Liabalities ar the beginning of the year (14) 11,7
Add # Less: Adpustments dunng the year 3067 (11,504
Deferred tax Asset / Liabalities as at the end of the year 3,953 (14}
3.6 - TRADE PAYAELES
Particalats Man:h%l,l"ﬂl? Man‘_'hgl,lﬂlﬁ
Cuistanding Expenses 2,16.517 162415
Total 2,16,517 1,62,415
3.7 - OTHEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Pasticilars Mnrch%l,l"ﬂl? Mamhi],ll]lﬁ
Current maturities of Long-term debd 00826670 27,10, 32 959
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,35.22.275 £1,72,076
Crthers
- Withholding Taxes 1,34,583 14,621
Total | 72,44,83,528 | 28,52,19,656

{;\




NABKISAN Finance Limited *

Accompanving notes o the inancial staemerits for the vearended March 30, 2017

MNOTE 3: Motes 1o the Balance Sheo

3.8 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

R March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Particulars ¥ ?’
Provisions for employee benefit
- Leave Encashmemnt .09 280 1,03 961
Others
- Contingert Provision sgainst Standard Assets 44,456,276 15,24,346
- Pronvisiom fiar Income Tax 4,09, 20,000 2 056, 00,000
= Unclaimed Dhvidend 2015-16 1,11.575 1,34.13.904
- Dividend Distnbution Tax 2015-16 . 27,30, 756

Totsl |  4,55,87,131 4,43,72,968
3.10 - MNON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particul Mamhgl,ﬂﬁl? Mamh%l,!l.’l[ﬁ
Investment at Cost in Bhavishya Nirman Bonds issued _
by NABARD (Face Value - Rs 8500 per Bond) 96,84, 500 it AN
96,64, 500 96,64, 500

arevalued at cost.

Mote : (a) The company has invested in Bhavishya Nirman Bonds issued by NABARID (1137 bonds at
Face value Bs. 20,000/ each) bought at discounted valoe of Rs.96,64, 500/ -, The marurity value
of the same is Bs.2,27.40,000/- at 10 years. In the absence of information on quotation, the bonds

3.11 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars Hmﬂlgl,lﬂl? Mﬂ.ﬂ:h%l,!ﬂl-ﬁ
Socured, Considered good,
Term Loans {,77,85,10378 54.03,55,001
Unsecured, Considered pood:
Term Loans
Secured, Considered doubuful:
r.::]_m Lu::-|“:1 o 1,15,63 399 SB.18,072
1,79,00,73,777 54,61,73,073
3.12 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Particalars March %l, 2017 | March %1, 2016
Unsecured, considered Good
{a) Income accrued on [nvestments 1,03,30, 708 56,920,941
(Bhavishya Nirman Bonds)
{b) Advance Income Tax (net of provisions) 4,04,91,583 2,70,83,692
{c) Unamortized Expenses 15,00,000 22,50,000
(d) Software work-in progress 14,46.260 -
5,37 ,68,551 3,80,24,633
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NABKISAM Finance Limited *

Accompanying notes to the financial statenzents for the year ended March 31, 2017

NOTE 3: Motes to the Balance Sheet

Mote:
MNo TDE is deducted on MABARD Bonds interest,

Unamortized Expenses - An amount of Bs.37.50 lakh was paid to Registrar of Companies towards
increase of authorised share capital of which one-fifth i.e Rs.7.50 lakh considered as expenditure
dunng the year, The remaining amount of Rs, 3000 1akh was clazsified 23 current and non-current asset
based on the provisions of Schedule ITof the Companies Act, 2013,

3.13 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars March gl,lﬂl?lﬂarthgl,zﬂm
Balances with Banks
< In Current Account
Indian Crverseas Bank 2,19.57,199 3,11,12.870
Aot Bank 10,820 2,0, (K
Unclaimed Dividend A/c with 10B 111,575 -
- In Deposit Account 6,549 80,000 21,41 (0,004
Cash on Hand T00 2577
9,20,60,294 24,54,15,447
Deposits with Oniginal martunty for more than 12 months L s
Deposits with Original maturity for more than 3 months 10,43,00,000
but less than 12 months
Deeposits with Original maturity for less than 3 months 6,94 B0 000 10,%6,00,000
3.14 - SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particalirs Mmgl,iﬂl? March %l,lﬂlﬁ-
Credit Facilities
Secured considered good 1,26,53,58,809 60,96,59 694
Unsecured, considered gpood - -
Secured, Considered Doubitful. 2,67 9 209 T1.20.493
Other Loans and Advances
Deposits & Prepaid Expenses 6,923,090 2,76,129
1,29,28 42,798 | 61,76,56,316

3.15 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

Marchgl, 2017

March %], 2016

Unsecured considered Good
Income accrued omn Fixed Deposins
Income accrued on Fixed Deposiis

Unamortized Expenses

12,048 10,33,939
52,72.169 .
7,50,000 7,50,000
60,34,217 17,83,939

___A
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NABKISAN Finance Limited

Accompanying notes o-the [inancial staterents for the year ended March 31, 2007

MNOTE 4 Notes to the Statemnent of Profir and Loss

4.1 - REVENUE FROM OFERATIONS

. March 31, 20017 | March 31, 20146
Particulars 7 ¥
Interest 20,88,22, 169 11,52,69,721
Processing Fee 1,22,92 989 56, TT 635

22,11,15,158 12,0947 356
4.2 - OTHER INCOME
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Particulars ¥ ’
Interest on
- Term [l'tpl:ls'tt 1,21, 78512 1,30 88 2ER
- Investment 16,39,767 15,085,203
Misc. Income 1,39 1,327
Reversal of NPA Provision - [,06,27.617
1,38,19 675 2,52,22 525
4.3 = Finance Cosis
Particnlnss Han:h.;l,.l'!l]” hllart:hgl, 2016
Interest on NABARD
- Refinance term loans 9.68,10,827 4,94,78,177
Interest Febate on Term Loan 52,425
068,10,827 |  4,95,30,602
4.4 - Employee Benefit Expenses
Partiealacs Mmh;l,![ll? Mnrch%l,lﬂlﬁ
Salaries & Allowances L1 i rl | 2468870
Contribution to Welfare Fund 2.64,262 279,260
Staff Welfare Expenses 15,12 060 13,25,927
75,83,593 50,74,057
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MNABKISAN Finance Limited

Aecompanying notes 1o the Gnangial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007

MOTE 4; Motes 1o the Statemen of Profit and Loss

N
|
|

4.5 - General & Administrative Expenses
Particalars ]h[i:ch.:l,?.l]l? Mardl%l,..:llﬁ
Communication charges 1.02.412 69,950
Insurance 4413 1,109
Legal and professional & consultancy fees 9.74,741 5,00,450
Stamory Audit Fee 86,250 91,600
Tax Auvdit Fes 14,375 20013
Electncity & Water Charges 36,440 35,500
Printing and Stationary 1.88,223 2,32 468
Rent 1,25,626 I 25,646
Rates and taxes 937,151 B.40,047
Travel & conveyence 15,28,301 591,518
Repairs and maintenance 63,585 56,672
Office expenses 1,73,246 1,35,628
Administration expenses 4,900,009 531,198
47,25 174 32,37,800
4.6 - Provisions and Contingencies
Particalsti Har-:h%l,!l]l'.-' Marchgl,lﬂlﬁ
Prowvizion for NPA 28,11.776 7,34 480
Provisions for Standard Assets 47,34 439 12.40,779
75,46,215 19,75,259
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NABKISAN Foance Limited *
Regd, Dfilce :Ground Fioor NABARD THRC -.'_'-.I"L..II'IE

-

NO.48, Mahalma Gandhi Road, Nungambakianm, Chenns 6000

——

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017
Pertionline Mnch;T,lﬂt? Miﬂh]-;,'ﬂ‘ﬁ-_
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met Profit before taxation and extraordinary ilems 11,E1, 14,430 8.62.00,087
Adpustment for;
Interest Income (1,38, 18,2800 1,453,953 581
Provigion for WPA 28,011,776 {98.93,137y
Depreciation 1,54.504 150,004
Profit on Sale of Assets -| {1.08,51.909) -| (2,43,35,642)
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,72 62 521 6, 18,65 445
Adyustment for!
Increase / (Decreass) in Secured Advances (1,91 86,70.225) (4t 33,25, 434)
Increase in Advances & Deposits reeoverable in cash o kind | (204,11, 156) (47,63, 200
Increase / {Decrease) in cament hability & provisions 124,57, 71,930 6, 76,64, 7164
{69,33,03 462) (43,0, 24, 016}
Cash penerated from Operations {58, 60 40 941) {36,85,58,571)
Drect Tazes pasd {net of refinds) (4,07 56,364) {2,58,93 941}
Extracrdinary item 4 i
Met Cash from Operating Activities {062, 67 9T 105) (30, 44,52, 512)
Cath flow from Lovesting activities
Purchase of Fixed Aszeis 1,69 43 (1,47,564)
Sale of Fioed Assets - .
Interes Income 1,38, 18280 146,389,755
Met Cash Mow investing activitics 1,36,48,44]1 I44,92,152
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Incre’ 3¢ in Share capital T, O], (W3R 34, 14,44,000
Increase in Long term Debi 423793711 17,61 584,598
et cash from Financing Activites 45,97,93,.711 51,716,218 598
Met increase la cash xnd cash equivalents {15,33,55 153} 13,76,68,278
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 24,54, 15,4471 10,77,47,16%
Cash and eash equivalent at end of the year 9,30 60,294 24.54,15,47
Vide our report of even date
For NABEISAN Finance Limited
5d/- Sds- 5ds-
for ¥ Senthilasthan & Co R.Amalorpavanathan  Syed Magoor Ali Jinnah Dre B.G Mukhopadhyay
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director
Firm Reg MouB037115 5d/- Salf- Sds-
8d/- Prevesh Sharma Sunil Haribhau Pote  Ashis Mondal
V Ecnthilnathan Independent Disector  Independent Director Independent Disector
Pamner Sd/f- £ds- Hds-
el Mo {!2414'1 K.Suresh Kumar 5.5. Vasecharan M. Bhuvaneswari
Mumbai, 28.04.2017 Chiel Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
{To be presented at the entrance)

20" Annual General Meeting at the Conference Hall of NABARD, Tamil Nadu Resional Office
(2" Floor), Mew No.48, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034,
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Only shareholders / proxies / representatives are allowed to attend the meeting,

NABKISAN FINANCE LIMITED
PROXY FORM

L e R e e e e e e e e Sl e in the district of

iiding WHIL FhIN.cc e onaliio s snmam s s 10t STOEE oF
covenceanoenn. B8 MY S our proxy (o atténd and vote for me / us and on my / our
behalf at the 20° Annual General Meeting of NABKISAN Finance Limited to be held on 25* day of

Seplember 2017,







Milk Collection Centre of M. s Milklane Dairy Services Pvt. Ltd in Andhra Pradesh




Vegetable cultivali

on supported in Kodaikanal Hills of Tamilnadu
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